HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 21, 2005
1:43 p.m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmttee neeting to
order at 1:43:11 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Holm

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly
Representative Carl Mses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

VEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Pete Ecklund, Staff, Co-Chair Meyer; Laura Achee, Al aska

Per manent Fund Corporation; Devon Mtchell, Executi ve
Director, Alaska Muinicipal Bond Bank Authority, Departnent
of Revenue; M chael Barnhill, Assistant Attorney General,

Departnent of Law, Cody Rice, Staff, Representative Carl
Gatto; Carl Rose, Alaska Association of School Boards;
Representative Mark Neuman; Eddy Jeans, Director, Education
Support Servi ces, Depart nent of Education and Early
Devel opnment; Representative Peggy WIson; Janet J arke,
Assi stant Conm ssioner, Division of Finance and Managenent
Services, Departnent of Health and Social Services; Jon
Bittner, Staff, Representative Tom Anderson; Dom nic Lozano,
Alaska Firefighters Association; Eric Tuott, Al aska
Firefighters Association; Kevin Smth, Executive Director,
Al aska Muni ci pal League Joint Insurance Associ ation

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

George Vakalis, Assistant Superintendent, Anchorage School
District; Marleen Norton, Human Services, Minicipality of
Anchor age; Rob Allen, Southeast Conference, Sitka

SUMVARY

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



HB 187

"An Act establishing the Al aska capital incone
account within the Al aska permanent fund; relating
to deposits into the account; relating to certain
transfers regarding the Arerada Hess settlenent to
offset the effects of inflation on the Al aska
permanent fund; and providing for an effective
date."

HB 187 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 13 "An Act relating to reinbursenent of nunicipa
bonds for school construction; and providing for
an effective date.”

HB 13 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

HB 231 "An Act relating to t he definition of
"municipality' for purposes of hunman services
comunity matching grants.”

HB 231 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 31 "An Act relating to the presunption of coverage

for a workers' conpensation claim for disability
as a result of <certain diseases for certain
occupations.”
CSSSHB 31 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with
a “no recomendation” recomendation and wth
three fiscal inpact notes: zero note #1 CED
i ndeterm nate note #2 ADM and a new i ndeterm nate
note by LWF.

1:44:45 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO. 187

"An Act establishing the Al aska capital incone account
within the Al aska permanent fund; relating to deposits

into

the account; relating to «certain transfers

regarding the Anerada Hess settlenment to offset the
effects of inflation on the Al aska permanent fund; and
providing for an effective date."

Co-Chair

Chenault MOVED to ADOPT the new CS for HB 187

| abel ed 24- GH1070\ F, Cook, 4/12/05.

Represent ati ve Hawker OBJECTED.

PETE ECKLUND, STAFF, CO CHAI R MEYER, expl ained that the new
CS changes the bill by taking the Amrerada Hess earnings and

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



creating a new fund in the general fund called the Al aska
Capital Incone Fund. The Anmerada Hess bondi ng proposal is
not noving forward; the intention of this bill is to
transfer those funds to help with this year’s capital
budget. He referred to a retroactivity clause on page 2.

1: 49: 23 PM

Co- Chair Meyer asked for an explanation of the difference
between this version and the original version of the bill
M. Ecklund replied that in the original bill, the account
resided within the earnings reserve of the Permanent Fund.
That fund was renaned and the noney was noved to the general
fund. A retroactivity clause was also added. Co- Chair
Meyer inquired if the anmount was $60 nmillion. M. Eckl und
replied that it was.

1: 50: 26 PM

Representati ve Hawker addressed his objection. He opined
that there is a critical deficiency in both bills, however
the approach in the CS conpounds the problem Both bills
woul d take 100 percent of the earnings every year, |eaving
nothing in the permanent fund to protect its value over

tinme. There is a need to inflation proof it. The new CS
takes the noney and noves it into the general fund. He
opined that the Governor’s bill did a better job of allow ng
discretion by leaving it in the permanent fund. It 1is

avai l abl e for spending and the value is kept. The Governor’s
approach needs a statutory percent of market value (POW) to
guarantee the continue growh and availability at a future
dat e. He argued for a POW and taking up the Governor’s
bill with an anmendnent.

1:54: 54 PM

M. Ecklund ternmed it a policy call and described the
out cone for both nethods.

Represent ati ve Hawker observed that the earnings this year
of $30 mllion, with a POW, would equal $21.9 mllion, an
$8 mllion difference, which is the inflation-proofing
conponent .

Co-Chair Meyer noted there were concerns going that route.
He did not disagree, but opined it would not hurt the val ue
of the principal of the fund because it is a one-tinme use of
the fund. He stated a preference to see Representative
Hawker’'s idea in a separate bill. He pointed out that this
noney woul d be used for a one-tine capital expenditure.

1: 57: 53 PM

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



M. Ecklund noted that with the proposed CS the |egislature
coul d appropriate noney back into the fund.

1: 58: 23 PM

Representati ve Wyhrauch questioned Representative Hawker
about his proposed conceptual anmendnent.

Representative Hawker said his anmendnent refers to the old
bill, version A

Co-Chair Meyer asked Representative Hawker if he would
renove his objection. Representative Hawker replied that
his amendnent is too conplex to address today.

Representative Hawker W THDREW his OBJECTION to adopt the
new CS. There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

2: 00: 53 PM

Representative Croft asked if the diversion of $30 nmillion
is just for two years. M. Ecklund replied that there is no
sunset date. Representative Croft asked about the interest
rate. M. Ecklund thought it was a 7 percent return.
Representative Croft agreed it was between 7 and 7.5
percent. He asked why the anount stays at $30 mllion.

LAURA ACHEE, ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATI QN, expl ai ned
the rates of return and the projected returns. The nunber
remai ns the sane because it is not inflation-proofed.

M. Ecklund clarified that the appropriation to the new fund

does not happen automatically. It still takes an
appropriation to take those earnings from Anerada Hess to
the new Al aska Capital Inconme Fund. Representative Croft

summarized that it sets up the nechanism but does not
prohi bit nor guarantee future action.

2:04: 29 PM

Representati ve Hawker related that the |anguage of the bill
states, “shall be deposited in the Al aska Capital |Interest
Fund.” Co-Chair Meyer observed that it would not prohibit
the legislature fromadding a POW concept.

Representative Croft referred to page 2, |line 25, and asked
if the deposit is diverted for all tine. M. Ecklund
responded that wunder current law that transfer does not
happen w thout an appropriation. If the CS passes, to

capture the FY 05 earnings, last year’s operating budget
woul d have to be anended. Representative Croft asked about
inflation proofing in Section 2. M. Ecklund expl ai ned that
the Amerada Hess “dead noney fund” would not grow any

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



further. Representative Croft opined that inflation
proofing is nore inportant.

2:08: 21 PM

Representative Joule asked for «clarification about the
Anmer ada Hess Settlement and HB 11, as it applies to interest
ear ni ng. M. Ecklund replied that the Anerada Hess fund
does not grow, other than the appropriation of the interest
earned back into the fund. Co- Chair Meyer replied that HB
11 does not apply to the interest earned.

2:10: 55 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker MOVED t o ADOPT Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
whi ch was drafted to incorporate the A version of HB 187:

Page 1, line 1, follow ng “establishing the”
Del ete “Al aska capital incone”
I nsert “Anerada Hess earnings reserve”

Page 2, line 14, follow ng “deposited into the”
Del ete “Al aska capital incone”
I nsert “Anerada Hess earnings reserve”

Page 2, line 18, followng “(e) The”
Del ete “Al aska capital incone”
I nsert “Anerada Hess earnings reserve”

Page 2, line 19, following “Money in the”
Del ete “Al aska capital incone”
I nsert “Anerada Hess earnings reserve”

Page 2, line following line 23

| nsert

“(f) Appropriations from the Anmerada Hess earnings
reserve account for a fiscal year nmay not exceed:

a. five percent of the average of the conbi ned market
val ue of the Anerada Hess earnings reserve account and
the value of the principal of the fund attributed to
the settlenent of State v. Anerada Hess, et al., 1 JU
77-847 Civ. (Superior Court, First Judicial D strict)
on June 30 for the first five of the six fiscal years

i mredi ately preceding that fiscal year.

b. the balance in the Anerada Hess earnings reserve
account.”

Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED for discussion purposes.
2:12:31 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker expl ained that the anendnent calls the
Al aska Capital Inconme Account “the Amerada Hess earnings
reserve account”, and any noney in that account nmay be

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



appropriated for any valid public purpose, i ncl udi ng
covering annual debt service. He expl ai ned the net hodol ogy
of the POW | anguage in the anmendnent. He spoke about the

gui dance of the trustees of the permanent fund. He noted
that his anmendnment would reduce the anount available from
$30 to $22 mllion. He enphasized the inportance of

protecting the value of the permanent fund. The anmendnent
woul d create a sustainable fund at the cost of not funding
all of the projects and would allow for not overspending the
fund. He stated his wllingness to fund fewer projects in
order to maintain the integrity of the permanent fund.

2:18: 31 PM

Co-Chair Meyer asked Representative Hawker if he agrees that
a one-tinme draw would not affect the long-termviability of
the fund. Representative Hawker replied that the fund woul d
survive; however, the issue is that the |l egislature violates
the public trust by attacking the fund.

Representative Kelly inquired if the POW approach would
permt the noney in the future to be used as a paynent
stream for bondi ng. Representative Hawker replied that it
would. It is an $8 million-a-year cost.

2:21:10 PM

Representative Croft restated the effect of the anmendnent in
bondi ng ternmns.

Representative Kelly agreed with the inflation proofing of
any fund. He noted that the concept of preserving the
corpus is attractive.

Represent ati ve Hawker suggested that this proposal m ght be
enacted for a longer period of tine. He pointed out the
value of the fund in 20 years if it is not inflation
pr oof ed.

2:23:26 PM

Representati ve Meyer suggested a sunset date or a separate
bill to set up a POW system He stated his intent to stick
with the bill

2:24: 19 PM

At ease.

2:34: 22 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that during the bread, a conversation
t ook place dealing with a possible conprom se on the bill

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



Represent ati ve Hawker W THDREW Concept ual Anmendnent 1

M. Ecklund referred to page 2 and discussed inflation
proofing by renoving subparagraph (3) of Section 2.
Representative Croft agreed that by renoving that section
Representative Hawker’s idea that every year Anerada Hess
could earn noney and then 5 percent could be spent, is
addressed. The net effect is that 3 percent is left in the
reserve, which is inflation proofed. The question is where
to inflation proof. He discussed the pros and cons of
renmovi ng Section 2.

2:39: 15 PM

Representative Hawker addressed Representative Croft’s
concern and said what is currently inflation proofed is the
princi pal of the fund, not the whole value of the fund. He

noted that is taken care of in Section 3, “incone earned on
the Amerada Hess settlenent shall be treated in the same
manner as other incone.” He suggested that renoving |ines

14-17 would solve the problem M. Ecklund concurred that
if lines 14-17 were renoved, the whole principal of the fund
woul d be inflation proofed.

Representative Hawker welconmed further expert testinony on
t he subject.

Representative Kelly suggested that |egislative | egal take a
| ook at it.

2:45: 04 PM

Ms. Achee restated Representative Hawker’'s question: if
lines 14-17 on page 2 were renoved, would the Amerada Hess
princi pal again be inflation proofed as it currently is and
would the $30 mllion anount increase. Represent ati ve
Hawker explained that the anount taken out for another
pur pose must go down. He suggested a review by |egislative
| egal

2:46: 42 PM

DEVON M TCHELL, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA MJNI Cl PAL BOND
BANK AUTHORI TY, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, spoke of nodeling
with inflation proofing. Wth a realized earnings rate
assunption of 7.04 percent and an inflation rate of 2.6
percent, the inflation proofing for 2005-06 would be about
$11 million each year. He agreed that the |argest benefit
woul d be in the future.

Representative Hawker asked if $22 mllion rather than $16

mllion is the correct anount. M. Mtchell said yes.
Representative Hawker argued that this is why the POW

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



met hod nmakes sense. M. Mtchell responded that it would
inflation proof the entire fund bal ance.

2:49: 20 PM

M CHAEL BARNHI LL, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF
LAW noted that all the options previously nentioned are
| egal .

HB 187 was HELD in Committee for further consideration.

2:50: 14 PM

HOUSE BILL NO 13

"An Act relating to reinbursenent of nunicipal bonds
for school construction; and providing for an effective
date."

CODY RI CE, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO, expl ai ned that
the purpose of HB 13 is to reauthorize school bond debt
rei mbursenent. In the Health and Social Services (HESS)
Commttee it was anended to be contingent upon a m ni num of
a $100 mllion direct appropriation to qualifying areas
primarily in rural Alaska. This programis an exact nodel
of the previous program wth the exception of the direct
appropriation. It allows for |egislative authorization to
rei nburse | ocal districts for wup to 70 percent of
construction costs for qualifying schools, and 60 percent
for schools that don’'t neet the standards.

Representative Joul e asked how long it would go and if there
is a cap. M. Rce replied that there is no cap and it
would be in effect until July 1, 2006. It is up to each
locality to determine the anmpunt of the bonding at the
bal | ot.

Vice-Chair Stoltze speculated that if no |ocal bonds were
passed, a $100 million direct grant would remain. M. Rice
said that is correct, however, bond debt reinbursenent is
contingent upon |egislative approval. Vice-Chair Stoltze
asked about a HESS anendnent regardi ng student popul ation of
1,000 M. Rice said he does not know He explained that
the intent of that anendnent was stated to replicate the
conditions of the previous bond package. He pointed out
that another difference in the HESS anendnment is the |ength
of the w ndow.

2:57:14 PM

M. Rice noted that Representative Gatto did not support
direct appropriations.

2:58:12 PM

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



CARL ROSE, ALASKA ASSCOCI ATION OF ALASKA SCHOOL BOARDS

stated support for the bill. He addressed a concern that
t he rei nbursenent program be extended. He referred to the
needs of the Alaska School Board, which resulted in two
resolutions, one to extend the bonded indebtedness program
and the other to insure that the capital inprovenent
priority list is followed. He opined that $100 mllion is
about $42 million shy of the current nmajor maintenance |ist.

He related that there is no way of know ng about the anount
of nmoney that will be passed in |ocal bonds. He ternmed it
an equity question and said not all needs are going to be
met .

3:00:42 PM

CEORGE VAKALI'S, ASSI STANT SUPERI NTENDENT, ANCHORAGE SCHOCOL
DI STRICT, (via teleconference) spoke of the many needs of
Al askan school districts. One of the biggest incentives to
nmeet sonme of these needs is the debt reinbursenent program
He spoke in support of HB 13.

Co-Chair Chenault asked what the ampunt of the total needs
is. M. Vakalis responded that M. Jeans has the |ist.

3:03:11 PM

EDDY JEANS, DI RECTOR, EDUCATI ON SUPPORT SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT
OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT, reported that there is
about $73 mllion on Anchorage’s needs list, but that does
not address all their needs. Co-Chair Chenault asked for a
dol l ar anpbunt regarding MatSu Valley’'s needs. M. Jeans
replied $8.9 million for Settlers Bay, $172,000 for the
Colony track, and $2.4 nmillion for Wasilla Hi gh renovati ons,
and one nore, which he did not have the nunbers for.

3: 05: 00 PM

Representative Kelly asked for Fairbanks nunbers. M. Jeans
replied that those were not submtted to the departnent.

Co- Chair Meyer asked how many schools qualify under the
70/ 30 program M. Jeans replied that nost of the projects
on the new construction list are in rural Al aska.

Representative Kelly spoke of a concern about his area's
nunbers. M. Jeans explained how the nunbers are obtained
for the departnent’s |ist.

3: 06: 56 PM

Co- Chair Chenault asked if new schools in the MatSu Vall ey
could fall under this program M. Jeans said any
muni ci pality could submt a request for review, but the

House Fi nance Committee 9 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



question is whether they would qualify for 70 percent based
on need, or 60 percent based on want.

3:07: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MARK NEWVAN, spoke about the MatSu Valley’'s
needs and increasing enrollnent. The school board has just
proposed $6 mllion in bonds for an elenentary school, a
hi gh school, and for the expansion of Wasilla H gh School.

3:11:16 PM

Co-Chair Chenault suggested that it is a worthwhile bill but
a few nore issues need to be |looked at first before it is
passed fromcommttee.

HB 13 was HELD in Committee for further consideration.

3:12:41 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO._ 231

"An Act relating to the definition of 'nunicipality
for purposes of human services comunity matching
grants.”

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON expl ai ned that HB 231 addresses
human services community matching grants, which total about
$1.2 mllion annually. Qualified comunities have to
provide a 35 percent match to receive a grant, and only
three communities are now qualified. This bill would make
it possible for other comunities to form consortiuns to
pool noney to receive these grants. Any group of
communities totaling 35,000 could apply. She referred to a
Tal ki ng Poi nts handout (copy on file.) It is not the intent
of the bill to take away from the original t hree
communities. The deadline for applying for these grants is
Oct ober. She described the process, which would not go into
effect until 2007. The Sout heast Conference would assist in
t he devel opnent of consorti uns.

3:17:43 PM

Co-Chair Meyer asked for clarification of the intent of the
bill. Representative WIlson repeated that it is not the
intent to take away services from anyone el se.

Representati ve Croft asked about geogr aphi c ar ea
definitions. Representative WIlson replied that the
geogr aphi c areas were purposely not defined. Representative
Croft asked whet her di verse ar eas coul d apply.
Representative WIlson said that is fine. Representati ve
Croft asked if the bill mght delay harmng comunities

recei ving current services.

House Fi nance Committee 10 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer clarified that the intent is to increase the
anount appropriated in the future.

3:20:49 PM

Representative Hawker related that there is no intent to
take funding away, presumng the sanme level of funding is
mai nt ai ned. He suggested that nore funding would be needed
in the future. Representative WIson said that decision
woul d be nmade in a HESS subcommttee. Representative Hawker
di sagreed with the zero fiscal note. Representative WI son
referred Representati ve Hawker to the second page
expl anation of the fiscal note.

Co-Chair Meyer suggested another option. Representati ve
Wl son said sone of it has already been done.

3:22:40 PM

Representative Joule asked about population requirenents.
Ms. Wlson inplied that the nunbers coul d be changed.

3:24: 25 PM

MARLEEN NORTON, HUMAN SERVI CES, MJUNI Cl PALITY OF ANCHORAGE,
ANCHORAGE, (via tel econference) spoke to the user’s matching
grants. She requested that sufficient funding be provided
for services.

3:27:18 PM

ROB ALLEN, SOUTHEAST CONFERENCE, SI TKA, (via tel econference)
spoke in support of the |egislation. It adds an additiona

category to the definition of areas that would be eligible
to receive state grant funds for human services. He pointed
out that the popul ati on of Southeast Al aska is declining and
f ewer contributions are flowing to nonprofits from
busi nesses and communities. He urged passage and support of
the bill.

3:30:14 PM

JANET CLARKE, ASSISTANT COW SSI ONER, DIVISION OF FI NANCE
AND MANAGEMENT SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL
SERVI CES, addressed the fiscal note. There is nothing
mandati ng hol ding harm ess of the grantees. Representati ve
Hawker agreed.

Ms. Clarke provided the history of the program The
original programwas established in the 1980's and the bl ock
grants went to only Anchorage and Fairbanks. In the early
1990’ s, with the downturn in state revenues, t hen-
Representative Boyer put the programin statute and it was

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



devel oped. At that point, no other community qualified
except Anchorage and Fai r banks.

Ms. Clarke referred to the fiscal note related to the CRA
version of the legislation (#2), which would inpact in FY
07. She noted the two scenarios provided by the note. M.
Cl arke referenced page 3. The departnent nmade the program a
statewi de program which would cover the entire popul ation
of the State. Page 4 of the fiscal note provides the
opposite view, which would need an additional appropriation.

3:35:57 PM

Representati ve Hawker asked about the grant history. He
pointed out that the program had been targeted. It was
codified in 1992. He noted that two years ago, the grants
had been zeroed out. He asked how that reconciled wth
expansi on of the program

3:.37:34 PM

Ms. Carke related that governors and comm ssioners can
change their mnds and they do support the bill at this
poi nt.

Represent ati ve Hawker inquired about dimnishing the anount
going to the conmmunities. Ms. Clarke replied that the
departnment is neutral on that subject. The original intent
of the social services block grant has changed with the
advent of WMat- Su. When the prograns were at their budget
hei ght, there were many designated grants. Today, there are
no desi gnated grants.

Representative Hawker asked for <clarification of “none”
going to the state. M. Carke replied that there are none
in the operating budget. Representati ve Hawker noted that
$1.5 billion dollars is in the Departnment of Health and
Soci al Services budget this year. He requested a statew de
br eakdown. Ms. Clarke replied that there is a breakout of
the comunity grants in the anopunt of $150 million dollars
in the grant book anal ysis.

Represent ati ve Hawker asked if scenario 1 or 2 is the intent

of the bill. Representative WIlson replied the intent is
not to make anything worse for other areas at the benefit of
her district. Representative Hawker observed that 1is
scenario 2. He asked, with |limted financial resources,

where the dollars would conme from

Representative WIson commented that services have been cut
to parts of the state and to nunicipalities due to the
elimnation of revenue sharing. This type of econony puts
nore stress on famlies and communities, and human services
needs definitely need to be nmet throughout the state.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



3:42:18 PM

Representati ve Hawker asked which area to the noney should
be taken from Representative WIlson replied from the
personal care attendant area, which needs sideboards.
Representative Hawker agreed. So nmuch is driven by
abandoned revenue sharing. He stated appreciation for
Representative WIlson’s perspective.

Vice-Chair Stoltze recalled that many cuts have been nade to
communities statewi de. Representative WIson responded t hat
in Southeast Al aska, services such as Catholic Community
Services had to be cut, which left a |large void.

Representati ve Hawker made a suggestion about the fiscal
note; have a two-scenario fiscal note with a clear intent.
Ms. Ol arke said that could be done. Represent ati ve Hawker
noted this year’'s 5 percent increase for PERS and TRS. M.
Cl arke deferred to the wishes of the finance commttee.

3:46: 54 PM

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent 1, on page
1, line 8 to delete 35,000 and insert 50,000. Vice-Chair
Stoltze OBJECTED for discussion purposes.

Representative WIson stated her support for the original
bill.

Vice-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his objection to adopt Anendnent
1. There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

3:48: 20 PM

Ms. Clarke clarified that several regions of the state would
not qualify at 50,000 population. It would cost $400,000 to
hold the current participants harnl ess.

Representative WI1son explained how the consortium would
wor K.

3:49: 54 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze set the bill aside. HB 231 was HELD in
Commttee for further consideration.

3:50: 29 PM

HOUSE BILL NO 31

"An Act relating to the presunption of coverage for a
wor kers' conpensation claimfor disability as a result
of certain diseases for certain occupations.”

House Fi nance Committee 13 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



JON BI TTNER, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE TOM ANDERSON, read the
sponsor statenent (copy on file.) He shared exanples of the
dangers of being a firefighter and the increased |ikelihood
of contracting cancer. HB 31 provides presunption of
coverage for first responders and firefighter, shifting the
burden of proof fromthemto their enployers. He referred
to a study in the commttee nenbers’ packets, which showed
no significant fiscal inpact in other states. He urged
support of the bill

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked who this legislation covers. M.
Bittner replied that the intent of the sponsor is to cover
as many first responders as possible, but all firefighters.
There is a new presunption on page 2, line 27-8, which
states coverage for police officers and energency rescue
personnel .

3:53:54 PM

Representati ve Hawker MOVED to ADOPT the new CS for HB 31
| abel ed 24-1LS0225\1. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so
or der ed.

M. Bittner related two changes in the new CS. On page 2

line 3, *“cardiovascular events” replaces “heart disease”.
On page 2, line 26, the firefighter has to prove exposure to
a know car ci nogen.

3:56:14 PM

Representative Hawker stated full support for the intent of
the bill. He wondered about voluntary self-destructive
behavi or. He referred to line 10, regarding a list of
evi dence of such behavior and asked if that list is too
limted. M. Bittner noted that the list is specific to the
excl usi ons. Representative Weyhrauch pointed out that it

reads as a presunption of coverage and the burden of proof
is on the insurance conpany or nunicipality.

3:59: 51 PM

Representative Hawker asked if the intent is to limt
coverage for these specific exanples. M. Bittner related
that these are the specific issues nentioned when drafting
the bill. Representative Weyhrauch suggested the wording,
“the evidence may include but not be limted to”.

Represent ati ve Hawker concurred W th Represent ati ve
Weyhrauch, but noted that the list is very broad. M.
Bittner said one of the fears was to nmake it too broad

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch gave an exanpl e of snoke inhal ed on
anot her fire departnent job.

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



4:03:38 PM

Co-Chair Chenault agreed that the list is too wide and woul d
exclude many valid clains. Representative Kelly voiced
concern about the cost of workers’ conpensation. He pointed
out that nost first responders are covered by OSHA

4:06:12 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker concluded that he is confortable wth
t he | anguage.

4.06:46 PM

DOM NI C LOZANO, ALASKA FI REFI GHTERS ASSCOCI ATION, related
that HB 31 provides a nmuch-needed safety net. He shared
statistics about the dangerous profession of firefighting.
Thirty-eight other states have this coverage. He gave
exanples of clains filed involving cancer. He nentioned
studies regarding the higher incidence of <cancer in
firefighters. He shared studies from various states. He
predicted that Al aska would have 1,000 clains a year. He

spoke in support of HB 31.
4:13:32 PM

ERI C TUOIT, ALASKA FIREFI GHTERS ASSOCI ATION, testified in
support of HB 31. He addressed concerns brought up earlier.
He noted that the bill is nodeled after WAshington state’s
| aw. He referred to the clause about tobacco products and
addressed a concern about nunbers and screening for cancer.
He pointed out that coverage under Section C is only for
first responders, and the nunbers would be limted. He
explained the criteria for qualifying for a claim

4:18: 27 PM

M. Tuott addressed a concern by Representative Kelly and
OCSHA controls. He pointed out that public safety enpl oyees

do not have OSHA coverage. He referenced the contagious
di sease portion of the bill. Hol ding an EMI |icense does
not qualify sonmeone for this coverage.

4:20:48 PM

M. Tuott addressed why this legislation is needed. He
referred to page 1, line 9, where it states that the
presunption of coverage may be rebutted by preponderance of
the evidence. The |anguage is restricted to first

responders and applies to clains that are already awarded.
He urged passage of the bill

4:23:10 PM

House Fi nance Committee 15 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



KEVIN SM TH, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA MUNI Cl PAL LEAGUE
JO NT | NSURANCE ASSCCI ATION, related concerns about rate
i ncr eases. He explained who is represented by workers
conpensati on and addressed conplications of the program He
pointed out that conpensation for these diseases already

exi sts. He suggested that lifestyle is a factor in these
di seases. He said that a nedical exam is costly and does
not preclude devel oping cancer |ater on. He canme up wth

the nunber 9,050 as the total nunber of firefighters that
woul d qualify for the coverage.

4:30:01 PM

Representative Croft asked who should have the burden of
pr oof . For exanple, he suggested it would be difficult to
know whi ch contact led to AlDS. He opined that it is fair
to cover AIDS and the burden of proof should not be on the
first responder.

M. Smth responded that ideally it would be nice to provide
this coverage. He opined it is easier now to prove, but the
liability is unfunded. Representative Croft suggested that
first responders should be covered. M. Smth tal ked about
t he expense of the worker’s conpensation system

4:34:24 PM

Representative Kelly asked if the incidence is so |ow, how
would there be a 10-20 percent increase. M. Smth
expl ai ned that NCCl wuses national figures. He spoke about
t he expense of an individual claim

4:36:18 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker noved to report CSSSHB 31 (FIN) out of
Committee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanyi ng fiscal inpact notes. There bei ng NO OBJECTI ON,
it was so ordered.

CSSSHB 31 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a “no
recommendati on” recommendation and with three fiscal inpact
notes: zero note #1 CED, indetermnate note #2 ADM and a
new i ndeterm nate note by LW

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:36 PM

House Fi nance Committee 16 04/ 21/05 1:43 P. M



